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2022 10
1,137,174 31.5
443,301 12.3
1,914,662 53.1
3,495,138 97.0
109,850 3.0
3,604,987 100.0

2022 10

RAPYUTA ROBOTICS
12,049 21,000 253,029,000 28,600 344,601,400 9.6

/IPY/

ISHARES MSCI INDIA

TF 27,140 4,392 119,196,941 6,272 170,232,853 4.7
INFCURION /JPY/ 210 | 470,000 98,700,000 | 470,000 98,700,000 2.7
DBS GROUP- HOLDINGS 22,200 2,314 51,360,978 3,592 79,746,756 2.2
LTD /SGD/ ’ ’ T ’ T ’
TAIWAN

SEMICONDUCTOR 44,000 1,726 75,933,748 1,799 79,155,140 2.2

MANUFAC /TWD/

BANK RAKYAT
INDONESIA PERSER 1,586,200 43 68,322,964 44 70,287,319 1.9
/1DR/

ALIBABA GROUP

57,620 2,568 147,947,155 1,164 67,043,220 1.9
HOLDING LTD /HKD/

SAMSUNG

ELECTRONICS PRF 11,438 4,606 52,686,226 5,562 63,613,775 1.8
/KRW/

COWAY CO LTD /KRW/ 10,779 6,998 75,428,914 5,770 62,198,150 1.7

HAIER SMART HOME

O LTD-H /HKD/ 166,600 358 59,705,247 372 61,954,978 1.7
TRIPOD TECHNOLOGY 145,000 430 62,306,980 411 59,661,573 1.7
CORP /TWD/ ’ T U ’
ICICT BANK LTD- 16,921 3,172 53,674,060 3,276 55,431,764 1.5
SPON ADR ’ ’ T ’ T ’
LG CHEM LTD /KRW/ 841 80,151 67,407,378 65,320 54,934,376 1.5

CHINA MENGNIU

DAIRY CO /HKD/ 115,000 615 70,703,829 476 54,764,049 1.5
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15 | HDFC BANK LTD-ADR 5,741 8,736 50,155,577 9,261 53,169,966 1.5

16 TENCENT HOLDINGS 13,400 7,141 95,696,029 3,893 52,166,011 1.4
LTD /HKD/ ’ ’ T ’ U .

17 NIPPON TELEGRAPH & 11,900 3,321 39,515,610 4,094 48,718,600 1.4
TELEPHONE /JPY/ ’ ’ T ’ T .

18 | NETEASE INC /HKD/ 29,575 1,925 56,919,021 1,621 47,935,608 1.3

19 | WIWYNN CORP /TWD/ 14,000 3,344 46,819,850 3,340 46,755,041 1.3
LG ENERGY SOLUTION

20 838 44,574 37,353,233 55,094 46,169,142 1.3
/KRW/

21 JIANGSU YANGHE 17,000 3,000 51,003,257 2,649 45,037,007 1.2
BREWERY -A /CNH/ ’ ’ T ’ U ’

22 NINE DRAGONS PAPER 507,000 145 73,590,236 88 44,639,635 1.2
HOLDINGS /HKD/ ’ T T .
CHINA MERCHANTS BK

23 90,000 611 55,005,204 489 43,966,505 1.2
/HKD/

24 | HITACHI LTD /JPY/ 6,500 6,680 43,422,978 6,760 43,940,000 1.2
HUNDSUN

25 | TECHNOLOGIES INC-A 51,116 810 41,395,042 845 43,201,194 1.2
/CNY/
UNITED

26 | MICROELECTRONICS 228,000 208 47,355,630 180 41,121,926 1.1
CORP /TWD/
BAIDU INC-CLASS A

27 28,390 1,913 54,323,255 1,422 40,370,586 1.1
/HKD/
CHINA TOURISM

28 | GROUP DUTY FREE 12,300 4,680 57,562,605 3,252 39,995,611 1.1
CORP LTD - A /CNH/
NICHICON CORP

29 28,500 1,186 33,798,369 1,401 39,928,500 1.1
/3PY/
CHAILEASE HOLDING

30 57,197 617 35,293,005 687 39,311,658 1.1
CO LTD /TWD/

2022 10

2022 10
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2021 11 2022 10
o1 - 5,525,314 12,684
222 - 4,053,937 10,514
2021 11 4,841,259 11,623
12 4,746,427 11,570
2022 4,289,221 10,682
4,132,177 10,410
4,130,874 10,499
4,043,678 10,300
4,096,780 10,465
4,053,937 10,514
4,021,077 10,429
4,061,921 10,559
3,699,269 9,753
10 3,604,987 9,601
2020 29 2022
2020 29 2021 20-8
2021 2022 e

100x +
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2020 29 2022
435,609 0 435,609
2020 29

435,609 0 435,609

2021
50,037 385,572

2021
50,037 385,572

2022
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VPC

LTV

VPC

vPC
VPC VPC

IPEV
IPEV

VPC
VPC

VPC
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90

30

90

30

2025 28
2025 28
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2163 12

90

90
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2022 30 2021 30

2.2 5 6 ¥ 3,894,260,595 ¥ 4,984,006,065
2.1 182,700,771 558,238,284
7,347,958 10,867,737
2.4 53,822,024 6,403,307
2.4 16,123,493 7,156,792
95,573
168,754
4,154,254,841 5,566,936,512
2.1 45,034 153,192
2.4 52,555,002 17,339,827

2.8 3 18,311,400
8.2E 14,410,062 9,506,837
8.1C 6,009,797 8,148,723
8.1E 2,744,965 2,117,019
8.2B 2,003,272 2,716,242
8.1B 1,139,506 820,250
8.1A 953,867 679,356

563,644
8.2D 205,857 135,818
8.1D 150,748 136,190

1,003,824
100,096,978 41,753,454

¥ 4,054,157,863 ¥ 5,525,183,058
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2021 30
2022 30
FupL®
2.4 ¥ 95,459,256 ¥ 47,270,462
2.11 7 (439,955,828) 379,284,608
211 7 (546,653, 480) 599,202,172
2.6 98,796,829 22,942,118
2.6 (121,214) 250,144
(792,474,437) 1,048,949,504
8.2E 32,431,937 29,934,739
8.1C 27,798,796 25,658,352
8.28 9,266,270 8,552,785
8.18 6,510,299 7,092,349
8.1A 5,520,981 4,307,669
8.1E 4,781,061 5,877,019
2.13 4,246,657 5,417,670
3,603,385 3,438,682
1,471,156 579,635
8.1D 952,136 901,534
8.2D 569,001 427,646
563,644 459,308
8.2A 346,700
339,049
98,054,372 92,994,088
(890,528,809) 955,955,416
(837,086) (2,041,409)
(891, 365,895) 953,914,007
2.12 (12,384, 681) (4,864,978)
¥ (903,750,576) ¥ 949,049,029
) FVTPL
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2020 29 ¥
3 4,576,134,029
949,049,029
2021 30 ¥  5,525,183,058
2.8 3 (567,274,619)
(903,750,576)
2022 30 ¥  4,054,157,863
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2021 30
2022 30
¥ (903,750,576) ¥ 949,049,029
(2,948,776,001) (6,454,332 ,053)
3,051,827,694 2,448 594,867
84,469 217,901
439,955,828 (379,284,608)
546,653,480 (599,202,172)
(47,418,717) (6,403,307)
95,573 (95,573)
(8,966,701) (7,156,792)
3,519,779 (10,867,737)
168,754 (168,754)
35,215,175 17,339,827
™ 4,925,107 24,260,435
173,533,864 (4,018,048,937)
4,576,134,029
(548,963, 219)
(548,963, 219) 4,576,134,029
(375,429, 355) 558,085,092
2.1 558,085,092
2.1 ¥182,655,737 ¥558,085,092
¥95,573 ¥(95,573)
¥86,492,555 ¥40,113,670
¥(12,384,681) ¥(4,864,978)
@
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
SBI-PICTET
2013 12
2020
2020 29
BBH
BBH
2021 2014 22
2021
KY1-9005
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman

Islands 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

SBI

Pictet

SBI

JPY ¥
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

Al
loT
4.0 5.0
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

ETF ETN

ADR
EDR
GDR

REIT

JPY JPY
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2021 12 CSC Intertrust
CSC
Intertrust 2022
2022 11
IFRS IFRS
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
IFRS
FVTPL
FVOCI IFRS
FVTPL

FVTPL
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

SPPI

SPPI

FVTPL

SPPI
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
ECL FVOCI
ECL
FVTPL
12
ECL
2022 30
2021
2.1
2022 30 2021 30
2022 30 2021 30
¥ 1,399 ¥ 6,042,509
182,699,372 552,195,775

¥ 182,700,771 ¥ 558,238,284

(45,034) (153,192)
¥ 182,655,737 ¥ 558,085,092
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2022

30
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2.2

FVTPL

2022 30 2022 30
415,588,700 351,729,000
3,478,671,895 3,489,982,903
3,894,260,595 3,841,711,903

2021 30 2021 30

253,029,000
4,730,977,065

253,029,000
4,131,774,893

4,984,006,065

4,384,803,893
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

EBITDA
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2022 30 2021 30
2.3
2022 30 2021 30
2.4
2.5

2.6
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

2.7
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

2022 30 2021 30
2.8

IAS 32

2022 30
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2022 30
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2.9

2.10

2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL

FVTPL

2.12

FVTPL

2063 12
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2022 30 2021 30
2022 2021
¥ 12,384,681 ¥ 4,864,978
IAS 12

2022 30
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2.13
2022 30

2021 30

4,246,657 5,417,670
100
10,000

2022 30
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30

¥ 4,054,157,863 385,572 ¥ 10,514.6584
2021 30

¥ 5,525,183,058 435,609 ¥ 12,683.8129
2022 30 2021 30 1

100
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2022 30 2021 30
2021 30 2022 30
¥ 4,576,134,029 ¥ ¥ (567,274,619) ¥ 4,008,859,410
2020 29
2021 30
¥ ¥ 4,576,134,029 ¥ ¥ 4,576,134,029
2022 30 2021 30
2021 30 2022 30
435,609 (50,037) 385,572
2020 29
2021 30
435,609 435,609
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

5.1
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

IMF
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2022 30
2022 30
CNH ¥ ¥ 330,317,129 ¥ (1,505) ¥ 330,315,624 8.1
HKD 8 973,080,696 2,607,037 975,687,741 24.1
KRW 367,258,281 696,184 367,954,465 9.1
SGD 434 155,287,130 155,287,564 3.8
TWD 331,618,855 11,275,195 342,894,050 8.5
usD 2,506,619 171,638,804 (2,244,122) 171,901,301 4.2
2,507,061 2,329,200,895 12,332,789 2,344,040,745 57.8
JPY 180,148,676 1,565,059,700 (35,091,258) 1,710,117,118 42.2
¥ 182,655,737 ¥ 3,894,260,595 ¥ (22,758,469) ¥ 4,054,157,863 100.0
2021 30
2021 30
CNH ¥ ¥ 302,756,677 ¥ ¥ 302,756,677 5.5
CNY 2,094,820 2,094,820 0.0
HKD 21,537,829 1,039,240,769 9,717,935 1,070,496,533 19.4
IDR 861,666 861,666 0.0
KRW 2,299,344 517,556,645 432,926 520,288,915 9.4
SGD 1,892,869 90,944,169 92,837,038 1.7
TWD 786,680 472,796,862 314,696 473,898,238 8.6
usb 5,529,913 591,897,943 (8,922,379) 588,505,477 10.6
35,003,121 3,015,193,065 1,543,178 3,051,739,364 55.2
JPY 523,081,971 1,968,813,000 (18,451,277) 2,473,443,694 44.8
¥ 558,085,092 ¥ 4,984,006,065 ¥  (16,908,099) ¥ 5,525,183,058 100.0
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2022 30 2021 30
2022 30
CNH +/- 19.41 +/- ¥ 64,114,263
HKD +/- 22.59 +/- 220,407,861
KRW +/- 9.57 +/- 35,213,242
SGD +/- 20.56 +/- 31,927,123
TWD +/- 16.96 +/- 58,154,831
usb +/- 23.70 +/- 40,740,608
2021 30
CNH +/- 1486 +/- ¥ 44,989,642
CNY +/- 11.81 +/- 247,398
HKD +/- 5.88 +/- 62,945,196
IDR +/- 6.38 +/- 54,974
KRW +/- 12.05 +/- 62,694,814
SGD +/- 8.21 +/- 7,621,921
TWD +/- 9.98 +/- 47,295,044
uSsD +/- 6.09 +/- 35,839,984
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2022 30 2021 30 50

913,497 2,760,979
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

2022 30

¥ 21,091,561
228,116,573
360,200,959

69,031,693
55,498,000
92,698,050
48,105,475
17,540,000
207,550,203
187,518,122
29,200,000
368,187,241
25,547,840
57,613,655
60,928,247
126,792,324
24,478,986
232,405,219
19,436,720
248,942,944
24,860,000
491,505,700
30,023,678
113,374,459
318,860,995
168,318,102
70,019,524
23,905,000
32,188,508
140,320,817
¥ 3,894,260,595
¥ 3,894,260,595
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

¥ 1,061,013,599 26.2
273,702,213 6.8
1,565,059,700 38.6
155,287,130 3.8
367,258,281 9.1
331,618,855 8.2
140,320,817 3.5
3,894,260,595 96.2
3,894,260,595 96.2
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

2021 30

¥ 166,846,000
54,492,179
36,355,115
55,312,568

199,880,554
128,023,344
122,109,500
72,018,835
87,208,184
215,893,330
371,457,557
186,386,821
79,052,362
116,099,499
58,078,359
99,411,971
136,435,000
209,070,992
119,740,561
645,822,991
123,715,632
313,845,000
64,363,150
117,717,412
41,242,991
402,747,802
524,777,665
103,786,524
132,114,167
¥  4,984,006,065
¥  4,984,006,065
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
¥ 1,504,468,711 27.2
297,312,511 5.4
1,968,813,000 35.6
90,944,169 1.7
517,556,645 9.4
472,796,862 8.5
132,114,167 2.4
4,984,006,065 90.2
4,984,006,065 90.2
2022 30 2021 30

38,942,606 49,840,061

104/222



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2022 30 2021 30

2022 30
2021 30
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2022 30
¥ 45,034 ¥ ¥ 45,034
52,555,002 52,555,002
18,311,400 18,311,400
14,410,062 14,410,062
6,009,797 6,009,797
2,744,965 2,744,965
2,003,272 2,003,272
1,139,506 1,139,506
953,867 953,867
563,644 563,644
150,748 150,748
205,857 205,857
1,003,824 1,003,824
¥ 100,096,978 ¥ ¥ 100,096,978
2021 30
¥ 153,192 ¥ ¥ 153,192
17,339,827 17,339,827
9,506,837 9,506,837
8,148,723 8,148,723
2,716,242 2,716,242
2,117,019 2,117,019
820,250 820,250
679,356 679,356
136,190 136,190
135,818 135,818

¥ 41,753,454 ¥ ¥ 41,753,454

106/222



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SBI-PICTET

2022 30

15

2022 30 2021 30
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

5.2
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

2022 30 2021 30
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

2022 30

5.3
IFRS 13
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2022 30
2022 30
3,478,671,895 ¥ ¥ 415,588,700 ¥ 3,894,260,595
3,478,671,895 ¥ ¥ 415,588,700 ¥ 3,894,260,595
2021 30
2021 30
4,730,977,065 ¥ ¥ 253,029,000 ¥ 4,984,006,065
4,730,977,065 ¥ ¥ 253,029,000 ¥ 4,984,006,065
2022 30 2021 30
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2021 30 ¥ 253,029,000
63,859,700
98,700,000
2022 30 ¥ 415,588,700
2022 30
2022 30
Rapyuta ¥ 316,888,700 40 60
Robotics (2021 ¥ 253,029,000)
EV EBITDA 2.0 14.2 EV EBITDA
Infcurion ¥ 98,700,000
(2021 )
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30

2021 30
100

2022 30 2021 30
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2021 30
2022 30
¥ (440,040,297) ¥ 379,066,707
84,469 217,901
¥ (439,955,828) ¥ 379,284,608
¥ (546,653,480) ¥ 599,202,172
¥ (546,653,480) ¥ 599,202,172
8.1
$3,750 0.06
0.05 10 0.04
2022 30 2021 30

2022 30 2021 30
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
2022 30 2021 30
2022 30 2021 30
0.60
2022 30 2021 30
2022 30 2021 30
0.01 10
2022 30
2021 30 2022 30 2021 30
2022 30 2021 30
2022 30 2021 30

8.2
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SBI-PICTET
2022 30
10,000
2022 30 2021 30
2022 30 2021 30
0.20
2022 30
2021 30 2022 30 2021
30

24

PEP
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

5,000
2022 30 2021 30
2022 30 2021 30
0.01
2022 30 2021 30
2022 30 2021 30
0.70
2022 30 2021 30
2022 30 2021 30

10
2022 30 2021 30
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SBI-PICTET

2022 30

10

2022 11
2022 2022 11 103,260,630
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SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund
Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2022

(Expressed in Japanese Yen)
Aszats June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
Financizl assats at fair valwe through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 5, B) ¥  3,8894.280595 ¥ 4984008085
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2.1) 182,700,711 558,238,284
Prepaid fees 7,347,558 10,867,737
Receivables for:
Securities sold (Note 2.4) 53,822,024 6,403,307
Dividends (Mote 2.4) 16,123,493 7,158,792
Interest - 95573
Other asssty = 168,754
Total assets 4,154,254, 841 5,566,536 512
Liabilities
Bank overdraft (Note 2.1) 45,034 153,192
Payables for:
Securities purchased (Note 2.4) 52,555 002 17,339 827
Units repurchased (Note 2.8, 3) 18,311,400 -
Investment management fees (Mote B.2E) 14,410,062 9,506,637
Distribution fees (Mote 8.1C) 5,008,797 B.148,723
Professional fees (Note 8.1E) 2,744,565 2,117,019
Fee agent fees (MNote 8.28) 2,003,272 2,716,242
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 1,139,506 820,250
Administrator fees (Mote 8.14) 853 BET E79,356
Registration fees 553 644 -
Agent member company fees (Note 8.20) 205,857 135,818
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.10) 150,748 138,180
Other liabilities 1,003,824 -
Liabilities (excluding equity) 100,096 978 41,753,454
Equity (being net assets atiributable to the holder of units) ¥ 4054157863 ¥ __5,525183.058

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
1
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Incoma

Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL™
Dividend income (Mote 2.4}
Met realized (loss)igain on financial assets and Habllities at fair value
throwgh profit or loss (Note 2.11. 7)

Met change in unrealized (depreciation)/appreciation on financial
assets and liabiiities at fair value through profit or loss (Mote 2.11, 7)

Met realized gain on foreign currency transactions (Note 2.6)

Met change in unrealized (depreciation)/appreciation on foreign cumency
translations (Nabe 2.8)

Total (loss)income

Expenses
Investment management fees (Note 8.2E)
Digiribution fees (Note 8,1C)
Fee agent fees (Note 8.2B)
Custody fees (Note 8.1B)
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A)
Professional fees (Note &.1E)
Transaction feas (Note 2.13)
Organization expenses
Printing fees
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.1D)
Agent member company fees (Note 8.20)
Registration fees
Trustee fees (Note 8.2A)
Other expenses
Total expenses

Operating (loss)iprofit before finance costs

Finance costs
Interest expense

{Loss)profit after distributions and before tax
Withholding tax expenses (Nole 2,12)

Total comprehensive (loss)income (being (decrease)fincrease in net
assets attributable to the holder of units from operations)

Juna 30, 2022

For the period ended
Juna 30, 2021

¥ 95,450,256

¥ 47,270 462

(439,955.828) 379,284 608
(545,653,480) 599,202,172
98,796,829 22,942,118
{121,214) 250,144
(792 474 437) 1,048 949 504
32,431,837 29,834,738
27,798,796 25,658,352
8,265,270 8,552 785
£,510,299 7,082,348
5,520,981 4,307 668
4,781,081 5877018
4,248,657 5417670
3,603,385 3,438,682
1,471,156 579,635
952,136 501,534
569,001 427 645
563,644 458,208
= 346,700
3308045 -
88,054,372 52,994,088
(890,528 80%) 955,955,418
(837,088) (2.081.409)
(891.355,855) 953,914,007
(12,384,681) (4,864,978)
¥ (903,750,576 X ___949.049.029

M This relates to net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through prefit or less ("FVTPL") including realized and
unrealized gainsfosses on financial assets and labilties at fair value through profit or loss and dividend income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.
2
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AtJ 2020 (Commencement of Operations) ¥ -
lzsue of units (Mote 3) 4,578,134,02%
Total comprehensive income (being incréase in net assats

attributable to the holder of units from operations) 848 048,029
At June 30, 2021 ¥ 5,525,183,058
Repurchases of units (Mote 2.8, 3) (B87,274,618)
Total comprehensive (loss) (being (decrease) in net assets

atfributable to the holder of units from operations) (203,750,578)
At June 30, 2022 ¥ 4,054 157,863

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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Cash flows from operating activities:

Total comprehensive (Joss)income [being (decrease)fincrease in net
assels attributable to the holder of units from operations)

Adjustments to reconcile total comprehensive incomed(loss) (baing
increasel{decrease) in net assets attributable to the holder of units
from operations) to cash provided by operating activities:

Purchases of investments in listed and unlisted private equity
securities

Proceeds fram disposition of investments in listed securities
Net procesds from settiement of forward coniracts
Mat realized lossf{gain) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or less
Net changa in unmealized depreciation/{appreciation) on financial
assets and Rabilifies at fair value through profit or loss
{Increase) in receivables for securities sold
Decreasef{increase) in recaivables for interest
(Increase) in recaivables for dividends
Decreasaf(increase) in prepaid fees
Decreasaf(increase) in other assets
Increase in payables for securifies purchased
Increase in other payables™
Met cash provided byl{used in) operating activities

Cazh flows from financing activities:
Procaeds from units issued, net of change in receivables for units
issued
Repurchases of units, net of change in payables for units repurchased
Met cash (used in)provided by financing activities

Met (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yearperiod (MNote 2.1)
Gash and cash equivalents at end of yeariperiod (Note 2.1)

Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities
Intarest received

Dividends recaived

Withholding tax

For the period ended
June 30, 2022 Juna 30, 2021
¥ (903,750,576) ¥ 849,049,029
(2,248,778,001) (5,454,332,053)
3,051,827 684 2448 594 857
84,469 217,801
439,955,828 (378,284,608)
545,653,480 (588,202,172)
(47 418,717) (6,403,307}
95,573 (85,573)
(8.968,701) (7.156.792)
3,519,779 (10,867.737)
168,754 (168,754)
35215175 17,539,827
4,825 107 24 260,435
173,533,864 (4,018,048,937)
= 4,576,134,029
(548 963 .219) =
_ (s48963219) 4,576.134,029
(375,429,355) 558,085,092
558,085,092 =
¥ 182,855,737 ¥ 558,085,052
¥ 95,573 ¥ (85.573)
¥ 86,492 655 ¥ 40,113,670
¥ (12,364 681) ¥ (4,854 978)

M Other payables comprise of investment management fees, distribution fees, fee agent fees, professional fees, custody fees,
administrator fees, registration fees, transfer agent fees and agent member company fees as disclosed in the Statement of

Financial Position,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
F1
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1. ORGANIZATION

SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund (the “Series Trust”) is a series trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust
{Cayman) Il (the “Trust?), an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed dated December 2,
2013 under Cayman lslands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated
March 5, 2020 and executed by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee”), a trust company incorporated under
the taws of the Cayman Islands. The Series Trust commenced operations on July 28, 2020 and unless previously
terminated in accordance with the provisions described in the section of the Offering Memorandum headed
"Termination of any Series Trust”, the Series Trust will continue until the Final Repurchase Day being the earfiest
practicable repurchase day following the first occurrence of any of the following: the net asset value ("Net Asset
Value®) being the value of its total assets minus its liabiliies including accrued fees and expenses) on any Valuation
Day is in respect of JPY Class Units JFY 100,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or thereafter the Manager
determines that all of the units of such class of units should be compulsorly repurchased by giving notice to all
unitholders, or the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units of such class of units should be compulsorily
repurchased (this may include, but is not limited to, circumstances where the Trustee and the Manager agree to
compulsarily repurchase all of the units for whatever reason on or after five years following the Initial Closing Day,
each a "“Compulsory Repurchase Event’.

Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. ("BBH") has entered into an agreement with State Street Corporation (*State Street”)
under which State Street will acquire BBH's Investor Services business; which includes its custody, fund accounting
and administration, transfer agency, depositary, forelgn exchange trustee and securities lending services. The
transaction is expected to be completed in due course, subject to customary closing conditions and regulatory
approvals.

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and registered under
the Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014,

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is One Mexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-8005, Cayman lslands (formerly 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-8007, Cayman Islands).

The Manager of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the "Manager”).

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. (the
*Administrator”, "Custodian”® and “Transfer Agent”).

Credit Suisse International acts as the Fee Agent (the “Fee Agent’).

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the "Agent Member Company”).
The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is SBI Asset Management Co., Ltd. (the "Investment Manager®).

The Sub-investment Manager of the Series Trust is Pictet Asset Management SA (the “Sub-Investment Manager’).

The Manager has authorized SBI SECURITIES Co., Ltd. to act as the Distributer (the “Distributor”) of the units in
Japan.

The Series Trust is denominated in Japanese Yen ("Yen", “JPY" or "¥") and units are denominated in Yen.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to seek to benefit from medium to long-term capital appreciation, in
Yen terms, mainly deriving from investment in public and private Japanese and Asian equities.

The Seres Trust has the following corefsatellite investment themes;
1} Core Theme - Innovative Technologies and Services

The Series Trust aims to achieve capital growth through selective investment in equities of companies that
are expected to lead industries, mainly by creating innovative technologies and services, using a rigorous
research process among a wide range of industries (the “Innovative Technologies and Services”).
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The industries in scope include, but are not limited to, companies in the following investment areas: Fintech,
Al (Artificial Intelligence) and blockchain. The investment focus includes any high tech industry that
promctes “Industry 4.0° such as IoT (Internet of Things) and robotics, 5G and “Sodiety 5.0°, where
innovative technologies and services that cover a wide range of industries, such as healthcare (medical and
nursing care), infrastructure (traffic and energy), food and agriculture, etc. are invalved.

2) Satellite Theme — Megatrends

Under the theme of the Innovative Technologies and Services, the Series Trust also aims to achieve capital
growth through selective investment in equiies and equity related securities of companies that may benefit
from global long-term market themes resulting from secular changes in economic and social factors such as
demographics, lifestyle, regulations and/or the environment (the *"Megatrends®).

The Ex-Japan Asian Public Equity Portion is focused on themes positioned at the intersection of
Megatrends. Companies strategically active within such themes are expected to experience long-term
growth superior to that of the overall economy.

The Series Trust's investment portfolio is divided into different portions (together the “Whole Asset Portfolio™):

() Private Equity Portion
A part of the Series Trust's assets is invested in private Japanese and Asian equities (the “Private Equity
Partion”).

(i) Public Equity Portion
A part of the Series Trust's assets is invested in public Japanese and Asian equities (the “Public Equity
Portion”). The Public Equity Portion is divided further in;

a.public Japanese equities (the “"Japanese Public Equity Portion”) being shares (the “Japanese
Shares”) listed on stock markets in Japan; and

b.public Asian (but excluding Japan) equities (the "Ex-Japan Asian Public Equity Portion”) being
securities (the “Ex-Japan Asian Securities”) that are:

i. shares listed on stock markets in Asia excluding Japan; and
il. equity related securities, including but not limited to:

1. instruments issued by exchange traded funds ("ETFs"), exchange traded notes ("ETNs")
or warrant issuers (™Wamrants™) which refer to equity indices of Asian countries excluding
Japan andfor shares listed on stock markets in Asia excluding Japan, in each case
without leverage;

2, the following depositary receipts collateralized by shares listed on stock markets in Asia
excluding Japan:

a. America via American depositary receipts (ADRs");
b. European depositary receipts ("EDRS");
¢. global depositary receipts ("GDRs"); and

3. listed instruments issued by real estate investment trusts ("REITs") that invest in real
estate assels in Asian countries excluding Japan.

i)y Cash Portion

" A part of the Series Trust's assets are invested in cash and cash equivalent investments (the "Cash
Portion™). This includes JPY and non-JPY cash deposits, money market funds and money market
instruments (including, but not limited to, commercial paper, certificates of deposit and government bills). For
the avoidance of doubt, ovemight cash balances may be held in the Custodian's sweep vehicle,
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(iv) Hedging Derivatives
All or any part of the Series Trust's assets atfributable to the JPY Class Units and denominated in non-JPY
cumrencies may, in the sole discretion of the Investment Manager and the Sub-Investment Manager, be
hedged to JPY by entry into the Hedging Derivatives.

The Investment Manager has been appointed with discretionary management power to manage the Whole Asset
Portfolio. The Investment Manager has appointed the Sub-Investment Manager with discretionary management
power to manage the Ex-Japan Asian Public Equity Portion and a comesponding portion of the Cash Portion and the
Hedging Derivatives,

The Investment Manager manages and determines the asset allocation among the Private Equity Portion, the
Japanese Public Equity Portion and the Ex-Japan Asian Public Equity Porfion.

On December 6, 2021, Corporation Service Company ("CSC") announced that a conditional agreement had been
reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Intertrust. CSC and
Interfrust anticipate that the transaction will close in the second half of 2022, subject to customary closing conditions
and regulatory approvals.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on November 4, 2022,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless ctherwise stated. The financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The
preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of cerain critical accounting estimates
and requires the Trustee and the Manager to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust's
accounting policies. Areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27) (2012) (the
Amendments). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an investment entity.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortized cost, fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification of
financial azsets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model! in which a financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.
On initizl recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

i} It is held within & business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash fiows; and,

ii) ts contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent payments of
principal and interest (SPPI).

A financial asset s measured at fair value through prefit or loss if any of the following apply:

i) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

H) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or fo both
collect contractual cash flows and sell;
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iy At initial recognition, it is imevocably designated as measured at FVTPL when doing so eliminates or

significanly reduces a measurement or recognifion inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilifies or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.

In assessing whether the contractual eash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual ferms of the

instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the

timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Series Trust considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Series Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assels (e.g. non-recourse features); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, prepaid fees, receivables for
dividends, securities sold and interest, and other assets, These financial assets are held to collect
contractual cash flow.

- Other business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. These financial
azsets are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking
place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held, the Series Trust
considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

- the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the
investment strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matehing the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related Fabilities or expected cash
outflows or rezlizing cash flows through the sale of the assels;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported fo the Series Trust's management;

- the rigks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed,;

- how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assels managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets fo third parties in fransactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial liabilites carfed at amortized cost include bank overdraft, payables for securiies purchased, investment
management fees, distribution fees, fee agent fees, professional fees, custody fees administrator fees, transfer agent
fees and agent member company fees.

Impairment of financial assets

The "expected credit loss” (ECL) madel applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt investments
at FVOCI, but not to investments in listed and unlisted private equity instruments.
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Based on the Series Trust's assessment, the ECL model does not have a material impact on the Seres Trust's
financial assets becausa:

= The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment reguirements do not apply to such
instruments.

- The financial assels at amortized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months), of high credit quality andfor
highly collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets are expected to be small.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the year ended June 39, 2022:

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual perieds beginning after July 1,
2021 and earier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or amended
standards in preparing these financial statements as they do not have a material effect on the Series Trust's financial
statements.

2.1 Cash and Cash Eqguivalents
The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with original maturity of three months
or less to be cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdraft is shown in liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

At June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, the Series Trust held the following balances as cash and cash equivalants:

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
Cash ¥ 1,388 ¥ 6,042,508
Time deposit 182,699,372 552,185,775
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position ¥ 182,700,771 2 E58,238,284
Bank overdraft {45,034) {153,192)
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows ¥ 182,655,737 ¥ 558,085,092

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(A) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
» Mandatorily at FVTPL: Investments in listed and unlisted private equity securities.

Financial assets at fair value thraugh profit or loss consist of the following:

June 30, 2022 - June 30, 2022 -

Fair Value Cost
Investments in unlisted private equity securities ¥ 415588.700 ¥ 351,728,000
Investments in listed securities 3.478,671,885 3,485,582 903

¥ 3854260585 ¥  3,.841,711,903

June 30, 2021 = June 30, 2021 =

Fair Value Cost
Investments in unlisted private equity securities ¥ 253,028,000 ¥ 253,029,000
Investments in listed securitias 4,730,977 085 4,131,774,893

¥ 4984006085 _ ¥ _ 4,384,803,893

Financial assets at amortized cost:
+ Cash and cash equivalents, prepaid fees, receivables for dividends, securities sold, interest and other assets.
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Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

« Other liabilities: bank overdraft, payvables for securities purchased, investment management fees, distribution fees,
fee agent fees, professional fees, custody fees, administrator fees, registration fees, transfer agent fees and agent
member company fees.

(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Seres Trust recognizes financial assets and labilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the frade date - the date
on which the Series Trust commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when its contraciual obligations are discharged,
canceled or expined.

(C) Measurement

Financial assets and Habilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value with transaction
costs recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to inftial recognition, all financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, Gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the “financial assets and liabiliies at fair value through profit or loss' category are presented in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Realized gains or losses on sale of
investments are calculated using first-in-first-out method.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if any. This is considered to approximate fair value due to
the short-term or immediate nature of these instruments.

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and frading
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the close of frading on the reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other assets for
which market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value ss determined in goeod faith in
accondance with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from the Manager. The resulting net change in
unrealized gains or losses are reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E) Investments in listed securities

The fair value is based on their quoted market prices on a recognized exchange or sourced from a reputable
brokerfcounterparty, in the case of non-exchange traded instruments, at the Statement of Financial Position date
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

(F) Investments in unlisted private equity securities

The portfolic companies in which investments are made may never be publicly traded or listed on a securiies
exchange. Investments in unlisted companies are riskier than investments in listed companies because, among other
things, they are not subject to the same disclosure and reporting requirements that are generally applicable to public
companies, Additionally, investments in unlisted companies may be difficult to value and difficult or impossible to
realize.

Investmeanis in unlisted private equity securities may consist of common stock and preferred stock of privately owned
companies. The fransaction price, excluding transaction costs, is typically the Series Trust's best estimale of fair
value at acquisition. At each subsequent measurement date, the Series Trust reviews the valuation of each
investment and records adjustments as necassary to reflact the expected exit value of the investment under cument
market conditions. Ongoing reviews by the Series Trust's management are based on an assessment of the type of
investment, the stage in the lifecycle of the company, and trends in the performance and credit profile of each
company as of the measurement date, The Series Trust uses an independent expert to value unlisted private equity
securities using an income approach.

In cartain instances, the Seres Trust may use Discounted Cash Flow and Recent Transaction technigues. The
decision to use a valuation approach will depend on the investment type and the information available. When
applying valuation techniques used to determine fair value, the Series Trust assumes a reasonable period of time for
estimating cash flows and considers the financial condition and operating results of the company, the nature of the
investment, restrictions on marketability, market conditions, foreign curmency exposures, and other factors. When
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determining the fair value of investments, the Series Trust exercises significant judgment and uses the best
information available as of the measurement date. Due to the inherent uncertainty of valuations, the fair values
reflacted in the financial statements as of the measurement date may differ from (1) values that would have been
used had a readily available market existed for those investments and (2) the values that may ultimately be realized.

Inputs used under the discounted cash flow valuation technique may include annual projected cash flows for each
investment through their expected remaining economic life discounted to probability weighted to reflect the risks
associated with achieving expected performance levels across various business scenarios, perpetual growth rate,
discount for lack of marketability (DLOM), and a peer group valuation mulfiple applied to correspending performance
matrics, that is, estimated value as ratio of eamings before interest, tax, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA).
The selected valuation multiple was estimated through a comparative analysis of the performance and characteristics
of each investment within a range of comparable companies. Investments in unlisted private equity securties are
generally categorized in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

(G) Forward Contracts

Forward contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument, currency, commodity
or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be setlied in cash or another financial asset.
Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs, such as currency exchange rates or commodity prices, applied
to notional amounts stated in the applicable contracts. Gains and losses are reported in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. As of June 30, 2022 and June 30,
2021, there were no open forward foreign currency held by the Series Trust.

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basie, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. As at 30 June, 2022 and 30 June, 2021, all financial
assets and liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting, and
therefore have not been offset in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.4 Receivables for Securities Sold and Payables for Securities Purchased

Receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased represent trading transactions that have been
contracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Financial Position date, respectively. These amounts are
recognized initially and subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables
for securities sold. A provision for iImpairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust will
not be able to collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptey or financlal reorganization, and default in payments are considered
indicators that the amount of receivables for securities sold is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

(A) Functional and Presentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in Yen. The Trustee considers the
Yen as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and
conditions of the Series Trust. The financial statements are presented in Yen, which is the Series Trust's functional

and presentation currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilties denominated in foreign currencies are translated in Yen amounts at the date of
valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities, issue and repurchase of units and income and
expense Hems denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Yen amounts on the respective dates of such
fransactions.

Reparted net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange
rates on financial assets and labilities at fair value through profit or loss are included in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets and fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and met change in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
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(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency transactions and translation are disclosed
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income each year. The current policy of the Series Trust is to not
pay distributions in respect of the JPY Class Units provided that, the Manager may, in its discretion, declare and pay
distributions from time to fime.

If the Manager does declare any distributions in respect of the JPY Class Units, it is anticipated that any such
distributions will be declared on an annual basis on each Distribution Declaration Day.

The distribution is expected to be computed from the following separate elements:

(i an amount equal to the dividends or distributions paid by the invesiments constituting the Whole Asset
Portfolio (net of all applicable taxes);

(i) interest accrued on the dividend or distribution amounts received from (i) abowve, until paid out on the
comesponding Distribution Date (paragraphs (1) and (if) hereafter referred to as the "Generated Income”);
and

(i) realized and unrealized capital gains from the Whole Asset Portfolio (the "Generated Capital Gains”)

In principle, the amount of distribution to be paid in respect of each Disfribution Date shall be determined by the
Manager in its sole discretion taking into account (1) Generated Income, (2) Generated Capital Gains, and (3)
miscellaneous costs, among other factors, per Unit, in each case attributable to the comesponding Distribution Period.
The Manager may, where it deems appropriate, elect that a distribution be paid in whole or in part out of investment
principal attributable to the JPY Class Units, that is in excess of any Generated Income received (and which may also
be in excess of any Generated Capital Gains) over a Distribution Period, where #t deems such amounts to be
insufficient to fund that distribution.

Circumstances where the Manager may elect to pay part or all of a distribution out of the Investment principal include,
but are not limited to, where it determines in its sole discretion that application of the Series Trust's investment
objectives and policies have generated a negative performance over the previous year or have underperformed such
that the Manager deems it appropriate to make such election.

There wene no distributions declared and paid during the year ended June 30, 2022 and the pericd ended June 30,
2021.

2.8 Repurchases of Units
The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder's option. The Series Trust classifies its pultable
instruments as liabiliies in accordance with |AS 32 (Amendment) Financial instrumenis: Presentation.
The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified
as equity where certain strict criteria are met. Those criteria include:

s The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;

+ The puttable instruments must be the mast subordinated class and class features must be identical;

s There must be no confractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the obligation
on the issuer to repurchase; and

s The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially on the
profit or loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust's units have been classified as equity at June 30, 2022

Units can be put back to the Serles Trust at any time for cash equal 1o a proporticnate share of the Series Trust's total
equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the holder
exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.
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Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust's total equity per unit at the time of issue or
repurchase, The Seres Trust's equity per unit is calculated by dividing the total equity by the total number of
outstanding units. Refer to Note 3 for further discussion.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter into certain coniracts that contain a variety of
indemnifications. The Seres Trust's maximum exposure under these amangements is unknown, However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to these contracls and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for units issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Financial Position
date. Payable for repurchase of units is camied at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of
Financial Position date.

2.11 Net income/{loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes realized and unrealized gainsflosses on financial assets
and liabiliies and dividend income. Net realized gain or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL is calculated using
the first in, first out method. Net realized gain or loss on financial assets and liabiliies at FVTPL represents the
difference between the cost of the financial instruments and its settlement price of the sale trade. Met change in
unrealized (depreciation)fappreciation on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL represents the difference between
the camying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was
purchased in the current reporting period and its cammying amount at the end of the reporting period. Refer to Note 7
for further details.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Accretion of discount and
amortization of premium over the life of the respective security are calculated using the effective yield method.
Dividend income and expense (where relevant) presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise
dividend on financial assets and financial liabilities measured at FYTPL.

2.12 Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman lslands Government exempting it from all local income,
profits and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2053, No such taxes are levied in the Cayman Islands at the present
time.

The Series Trust could incur withhelding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains.
Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

For the year ended June 30, 2022 and period ended June 30, 2021 taxes were comprised of the following balance:

2022 2021
Withholding Taxes on Dividends ¥ 12,384,681 ¥ 4 854 578

The Seres Trust may choose to invest in securities domiciled in countries other than the Cayman Islands. Many of
these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents
including the Series Trust. These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and,
therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Series Trust's broker on a "withholding” basis.

In accordance with IAS 12 - lncome Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable
that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax Hability to be assessed on the Series Trust's capital gains sourced
from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and
circumstances. The tax liabllity is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation
authorities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore investment Series
Truste. This creates uncerainty about whether or not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust
Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax liabiliies management considers all of the relevant facts and
circumstances available at the time which could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal
practices of the relevant tax authorities.
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As at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability to
record for any unrecognized tax benefit in the accompanying financial statements. While this represents the
Manager's best estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect tawes on capital
gains eamed by the Series Trust. This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a retrospeclive basis,
and could result in a loss to the Series Trust.

2.13 Transaction Fees

Transaction fees are costs incurred to acquire or dispose of financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. Transaction costs, when incurred, are immediately recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as
an expense. For the year ended June 30, 2022 and the period ended June 30, 2021, the Series Trust paid
¥4 245 657 and ¥5,417 670, respectively in transaction fees.

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Net Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust
by the total number of units of the Series Trust then outstanding. The Administrater computes the Net Asset Value of
the Series Trust at the clese of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in Japanese Yen.

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 100 units. All unitholders must complete a subscription
application. The initial purchase price of units is JPY10,000 per unit.

All payments for the units must be made in Japanese Yen. The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason
and without providing reasons.

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription date at the
relevant subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made in Japanese Yen. The Trustee may reject any
subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

The Trustee or itz duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or prier to 5:00 p.m.
(Tokyo time) by no later than the second business day after the relevant subscription date. Subscription applications
are irevocable.

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Met Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding
JPY Class Units ¥ 4054157863 |5572 ¥ 10,514.6584

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of June 30, 2021 were as follows:

Net Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit
JPY Class Units ¥ 5525183,058 435809 ¥ 12,683.8129

As of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, all issued units were held by one unitholder, who helds 100% of interest in
the net assals,

A unitholder may transfer its holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustee which consent shall
not be unreascnably withheld or delayed. Mo fransfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trustee or
unitholder until entered into the Series Trust's register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice requesting to have all or
a portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the relevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders may
be submitted in units. If such notice is not in respect of the entire holding units of such unitholder recorded in the
register of unitholders then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply @ minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit.
Repurchase notices are imevoecable.
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At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit
being repurchased.

Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are paid in cash but may be
made in kind (or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee to the extent that the Trustee, in
consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unitholder. If such a determination is
made by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are made on the same basis.

Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable cumrency as
a unitholder may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to
such unitholder, No such repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior to actual distribution.

During the year ended June 30, 2022 and the perod ended June 30, 2021, the proceeds from units issued,
repurchased and outstanding were as follows:

At Proceeds from units  Proceeds from units At
Classes of units June 30, 2021 issued repurchased June 30, 2022
JPY Class Units ¥ 4.578,134,029 ¥ - ¥ (567.274619) ¥ 4.008,859,410
At July 28, 2020
{Commencement of Proceeds from units Proceeds from units At
Classes of units Operations) issued repurchased June 30, 2021
JPY Class Units ¥ - ¥ 4578134029 ¥ - ¥ 4.578,134,029

During the year ended June 30, 2022 and the period ended June 30, 2021, the number of units issued, repurchased
and outstanding were as follows:

At At
Classes of units June 30, 2021 Units issued Units repurchased June 30, 2022
JPY Class Units 435,609 - (50,037) 385,572
AtJuly 28, 2020
(Commencement of At
Classes of units Operations) Units issued Units repurchased June 30, 2021
JPY Class Units - 435,609 - 435,609

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any
circumstances where the calculation of the Net Asset Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholder
of such a suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or lifted. Subscription applications and repurchase
notices cannot be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or
repurchase date, as the case may be.

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabiliies. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of fulure events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time, hold
financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation technigues (for example, models) are
used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by the Manager.

5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT
5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust o
The Series Trust's activities expose it to a varety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate

risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these risks is carred out by the Manager under
policies approved by the Trustee.
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The Series Trust uses different methods to measure and manage the vanous types of nsks to which it is exposed;
these methods are explained below.

{A) Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk

Listed and unlisted private equity securities in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or quoted in
cumencies other than the functional currency of the Seres Trust For this reason, changes in foreign currency
exchange rates can affect the value of the Series Trust's porifolio.

Generally, when the Series Trusts functional currency rises in value against another cumency, a security
denominated in that currency loses value because the cumrency is worth less giving effect to the conversion into the
Series Trust's functional cumency. Conversely, when the Series Trust's functional currency decreases in value
against another currency, a security dencminated in that currency gains value.

This risk, generally known as "currency risk”, means that a strong functional currency of the Series Trust may reduce
retuns to investors while a weak funclional currency of the Series Trust may increase those returns. Currency rates
may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time for a number of reasons, including changes in intarest rates,
intervention (or the failure to intervene) by the govemments, central banks or supranational entities such as the
International Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency conirols or other political developments. As a result, the
Series Trust's investments in foreign-currency denominated securities may reduce its returns. Cerlain positions taken
by the Series Trust are designed to profit from forecasting cumency price movements. Predicting fulure prices is
inherently uncertain and the losses incurred, if the market moves against a position, will not be hedged. The
speculative aspect of attempting to predict absalute price movements is generally perceived to exceed that involved
in attempting to predict relative price fluctuations.

Through the use of various types of foreign currency transactions, the Series Trust may be exposed to the
performance of a particular curmency or cumencies to contribute to the performance of the Series Trust. There can be
no assurance that the Manager will employ a successful currency pregram and the Series Trust could incur losses
attributable o its currency activitias when the value of the functional currency weakens against the other curmencies of
the Seres Trust. In addition, the Series Trust will incur transaction costs in connection with the currency strategy
designated by the Manager.

The table below summarizes the Series Trust's exposure to currency risks at June 30, 2022:

Financial Assets at % of Met
At Cash and Cash Fair Value through  Other Assets and Asset
June 30, 2022 Equivalents Profit or Loss Liabilities (Net) Met Value
Chinese Yuan
Renminbi (offshore
market) CMNH ¥ - ¥ 330,317,129 ¥ (1,505) ¥ 330,315,624 8.1%
Hong Kong Dellar  HKD -3 973,080,696 2,807,037 275,687,741 24.1%
South Korean Won  KRW - 357,258,281 695,184 367,054 465 89.1%
Singapore Dollar 5GD 434 155,287,130 - 155,287,564 3.8%
Mew Taiwan Doflar  TWD - 331,618,855 11,275,195 342,894,050 8.5%
United States Dollar  USD 2,506,819 171,638,804 (2,244,122) 171,801,301 4.2%
2 507 081 2‘329,200 885 12 332 TES 2 3445 040 745 57.8%
Japanese Yen JPY 160, 148676 1.565.059,700 1 1,710,117, 118 42.2%

¥ 182,655,737 ¥ Ewmm ¥ 4,054 157,863 100.0%
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The table below summarizes the Series Trust's exposure to cumency risks at June 30, 2021:

Financial Assets
at Fair Value % of Net
At Cash and Cash through Profiter  Other Assets and Asset
June 30, 2021 ulvalents Loss Liabilities MNet Valua
Chiness Yuan
Renminbi (ofishore
marieat) CNH ¥ - ¥ 302,756 87T ¥ - ¥ 302,756 677 5.5850
Chinese Yuan
Renminbi (onshore
mearket) CNY 2,094,820 - - 2,084,820 0.0%
Hang Kong Dollar HED 21,537,829 1,039,240,769 8,717,935 1.070,496,533 19.4%
Indonesian Rupiah IDR 861,686 - - 851,668 0.0%
South Korean Waon  KRW 2,298,344 517,556,645 432,826 520,288,915 9.4%
Singapare Doltar SGD 1,892,889 80,044 169 - 92 837,038 1.7%
MNew Taiwan Dollar  TWD TBS 620 472 795 852 314,556 473,898 238 8.6%
United States Dollar USD 5,529,913 581,897,043 (8,922.379) 588,505477 10.6%
35,003,121 3,015,193,065 1,543,178 3,051,730, 364 55.2%
Japanese Yen JPY 523,081,971 1,868.813.000 (18.451.27T7) 2.473.443,694 44.8%
¥ 558,085,092 ¥ ﬁsaulms,nes ¥ {16,908,009) ¥ 5 525183,058 100.0%

The following table summarizes the sensitivity of the Series Trust's assets and liabilities to changes in foreign
exchange movements at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, The analysis is based on the assumptions that the
relevant foreign exchange rate increased/(decreased) against the Japanese Yen by the percentages disclosed in the
table, with all other variables held constant. This represents management’'s best estimate of a reasonably possible
shift in the foreign exchange rates, having regard to historical volatility of those rates.

Reasonably possible
shift in currency rate at Impact to Seres Trust
Currency Sune 30, 2002 Azg
CNH He 1941% + ¥ 64,114,263
HED +H- 255%  +- 230407 851
ERW + BET%H - 35215242
5GD e 20.56%  +- T
™D +H- 1B.08%  +- 58,154,831
ush e 2370% s 40,740,808
Reasonably possible
shift in currency rate at Impact to Serles Trust

Eurrency Jumne 30, 2021 Met Assels

CNH - 14.05% H ¥ 44,989,642
CHY +- 11.81% +a 247,338
HKD +le 5.88% += 62,845,186
IDR # B38% e 54874
ERW s 12.05%% fra 62 604,814
SGD L B.21% = TE21.E1
TWD e 9.88% +e 47,205,044
Uso - 6.00% - 35,839,984

It is expected that a substantial portion of the assets of the Series Trust may be denominated in non-JPY currencies.
Accordingly, the Series Trust may have exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates through investment in
investment currencies other than JFY. This may include, but is not limited to, USD and RMB.

In principle, the Investment Manager and Sub-lnvestment Manager will not enter into any currency hedging
transactions in respect of such foreign exchange exposure. However, the Investment Manager and Sub-Investment
Manager, as applicable, may, at its sole discretion, enter into currency hedging transactions which are designed to
reduce, but not eliminate, exchange-rate risk and protect all or any part of the assets attributable to the JPY Class
Units from a depreciation in the investment currencies against JPY.
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To the extent that any such hedging is camied out, the Investment Manager and Sub-Investment Manager, as
applicable, may use spot contracts, forward foreign exchange coniracts, non-deliverable forwards (including cross
forward foreign exchange contracts, swaps, options and futures in order to attempt to hedge against such currency
fluctuations. There can be no assurance that such hedging transactions will be effective if carried out. The gains or
losses aftributable to any such hedging shall be applied to the JPY Class Units.

(if) Interest Rate Risk

The majority of the Series Trust's financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing. Interest bearing assets held
by the Series Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents, including bank overdraft whose maturity is less than
three months. As a resull, the Series Trust is not subject to any significant risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates.

At June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basis peints with all other
variables remaining constant, the increase or decrease in fotal comprehensive income of the Series Trust (being
increase in net assets atiributable to the holder of units from operations for the period) would amount to
approximately ¥913,497 and ¥2,7680,979, respectively assuming that the cash position will be held for one year.

(iii) Market Price Risk

The market price of securities owned by the Series Trust may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably.
Securiies may decline in value due to faclors affecting securiies markets generally or particular industries
represented in the securities markets. The value of a security may decline due to general market conditions which are
not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic conditions, supply and
demand for particular securities or instruments, changes in the general outlook for corporate eamings, changes in
interest or currency rates or adverse investor sentiment They may also decline due to factors which affect
a particular industry or industries, such as labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive conditions
within an industry. During a general downturn in the securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline in value
simultaneously. Listed and unlisted private equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed income
securities,
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The following table summarizes the concentration in market price risk as at June 30, 2022;

Industry Name Fair Valus % of Net Assets
Investment in listed and unlisted private equity securities

Auto Manufacturers 21,091,581 0.5%
Auto Parts & Equipment 228,116,573 5T%
Banks 360,200,858 8.9%
Beverages 69,031,693 1.7%
Biotechnology 55,458,000 1.4%
Building Materials 92,698,050 23%
Chemicals 48,105,475 1.2%
Commercial Senvices 17,540,000 0.5%
Computers 207,550,203 5.2%
Diversified Financial Senvices 187,518,122 4.8%
Electric 23,200,000 0.7%
Electronics 368,187,241 9.1%
Energy-Alternate Sources 25,547,840 0.6%
Food 57,613,655 1.4%
Forest Products & Paper 60,928,247 1.5%
Healthcare-Products 126,792,324 31%
Haalthcare-Sarvices 24 478,986 0.6%
Home Fumnishings 232405218 5T%
Insurance 19,436,720 0.5%
Internet 248,942 044 6.1%
Leisure Time 24,880,000 0.6%
Machinery-Diversified 491,505,700 12.1%
Real Estate 30,023 678 0.7%
Retail 113,374,458 28%
Semiconductors 318,860,855 7.85%
Software 168,318,102 4.2%
Telecommunications 70,019,524 1.7%
Transportation 23,905,000 0.6%
Water 32,188,508 0LE%
Exchange Traded Fund 140,320,817 3.5%
Total investment in listed and unlisted private equity securities 3,884, 260,595 96.2%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3,804,260,595 86.2%
Country Name Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investment in listed and unlisted private equity securities

China 1,061,013,588 26.2%
Hong Kong 273702213 6.8%
Japan 1,665,059,700 38.6%
Singapore 155,287,130 3.8%
South Korea 367,258,281 8.1%
Taiwan 331,618,855 B.2%
United States 140,320,817 3.59%
Total Investment in listed and unlisted private equity securities 3,894, 260,535 96.2%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3.884,260,555 96.2%
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The following table summarizes the concentration in market price risk as at June 30, 2021:

Industry Name - Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investment in listed and unlisted private equity securities

Advertising ¥ 165,845,000 3.0%
Apparal 54,492 179 1.0%
Auto Manufacturers 35,355,115 0L.7%
Aufto Parts & Equipment 55,312 5588 1.0%
Banks 199,680,554 3.6%
Beverages 128,025,344 2.3%
Biotechnalogy 122,108,500 2.2%
Building Materials 72,018,835 1.3%
Chearmicals 87,208,184 1.6%
Commercial Servicas 215,893,330 3.9%
Computers 371,457,557 B.7%
Diversified Financial Services 185,385,821 31.4%
Elecironics 79,052 362 1.4%
Energy-Alemate Sources 116,099,488 2.1%
Forest Products & Paper 58,078,359 1.0%
Healthcare-Products 89,411,971 1.8%
Healthcare-Services 136,435,000 2.5%
Hemea Fumnishings 208,070,852 3.8%
Insurance 118,740,581 2.2%
Intemet 645,622,991 11.7%
Leisura Time 123,715,832 2.2%
Machinery-Diversified 313,845,000 5.7%
Pharmacauticals B4 383 150 1.2%
Real Estale 7T 42 2.1%
Retail 41,242 591 0.7%
Semiconductors 402,747 802 7.3%
Software 524,777,665 9.5%
Telecommunications 103,786,524 1.8%
Exchange Traded Fund 132,114,167 2.4%
Total investment in listed and unlisted private equity securities ¥ 4,984 006,065 90.2%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ¥ 4,984.006,065 90.2%
Country Name Fair Vialue % of Met Assets
Investment in listed and unlisted private equity securities

China ¥ 1,504,458 711 27.2%
Hong Kong 297,312,511 5.4%
Japan 1.968,813,000 35.6%
Singapore 80,544 169 1.7%
South Korea 517,556,645 9.4%
Tamwan 472,798 8B2 8.5%
United States 132,114,167 2.4%
Total investment in listed and unlisted private equity securities ¥ 4,984 006,065 90.2%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ¥ 4,984,006,065 90.2%

Az the Series Trust's investments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will directly affect the total net assets and total
comprehensive incoma,

An increase in market prices of the investment in listed and unlisted private equity securities of 1% at June 30, 2022
and June 30, 2021, would have increased the total equity by ¥38,942 606 and ¥40,840,061, respectively. A decrease
of 1% would, all else being equal, have an equal but opposite effect.

(B) Credit Risk
The Series Trust takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounis
in full when they fall due.

Changes in an issuer's credit rating or the market's perception of an issuer's creditworthiness may affect the value of

the Series Trust's invesiment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk depends on both the financial condition of the
issuer and the terms of the obligation.
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All transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is
considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is
made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to
meet their obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust's credit position on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 is the carrying
amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. None of these assels are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Series Trust's security transactions are mainly concentrated with the
Custodian. At June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 all cash and cash equivalents, balances due from broker and
investments are placed in custody with the Custodian, with a Fitch credit rating of A+.

(C) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust's investments in
illiquid securities may reduce the refurns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the flliquid securities at
an advantageous time or price. To the extent that the Seres Trust's principal investment strategies involve non-
developed country securities, derivatives and securities with substantial market and/or credit risk, the Series Trust will
tend to have the greatest exposure to liquidity risk. The Seres Trust's investments In unlisted private equity securities
are difficult to purchase or gell. The Private Equity Portion will invest in illiquid securities, which may reduce the refum
and original investment principal of the Seres Trust because it may be unable to sell such illiquid securities at an
advantageous time or price.

The tables below analyze the Series Trust's financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At June 30, 2022 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total
Bank overdraft ¥ 45034 ¥ - ¥ 45034
Payables for
Securities purchased 52,555,002 - 52,555,002
Units repurchased 18,311,400 = 18,311,400
Investment management fees 14,410,062 - 14,410,062
Distribution fees 6,008,787 - 6,000,797
Professional fees 2,744,965 - 2,744 965
Fee agent fees 2,003,272 - 2,003,272
Custody fees 1,138,506 = 1,139,506
Administrator fees 953,867 - 853 857
Registration fees 563,644 - 563,644
Transfer agent feas 150,748 - 150,748
Agent Member Company fees 205,857 - 205,857
Other liabilities 1,003,824 - 1,003,824

Contractual cash out flows (excluding
net assets attributable to the holder of
units) ¥ 100096578 ¥

¥ 100096978

3
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At.June 30, 2021 Less than 1 month 1 -3 months Total
Bank overdraft ¥ 183,182 ¥ - ¥ 153,192
Payables for:
Securities purchasad 17,339,827 - 17,339,827
Investment management fees 5,508,837 - 9,506 837
Distribution fees 8,148 723 - 8,148,723
Fee agent fees 2,716,242 - 2,718,242
Professional fees 2117018 - 217,018
Custody fees 820,250 - 820,250
Administrator fees 679,355 - 679,356
Transfer agent fees 138,180 - 136,180
member co fees 135,818 - 135,518

Contractual cash out flows (excluding
net assets attributable to the holder of
units) ] 41,753454 ¥ = 41,753,454

Units are repurchased on demand at the holder's option. However, the Trustee does not envision that this contractual
maturity disclosed will be representative of the actual cash outfiows, as holders of these instruments typically retain
them for the medium to long term.

The Manager monitors the Series Trust's liquidity position on an ongeing basis.
Liquidity risk iz managed by investing no more than 15% of the Net Asset Value in illiquid assets.

At June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 there were no Series Trust derivative financial instruments with gross
sattlement.

(D) Risk Management

The Series Trust's Investment Manager’s team is supported by cerlain risk management systems and professionals,
which provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative risk measures. Prospective investors should
be aware that no risk management system is fail-safe, and no assurance can be given that risk frameworks employed
by the Manager (e.g., stop-win, stop-loss, sharpe ratios, loss limits, value-at-risk or any other methodology now
known or later developed) will achieve their objectives and prevent or ctherwise limit substantial losses. No
assurance can be given that the risk management systems and techniques or pricing models will accurately predict
future trading patterns or the manner in which investments are priced in financial markets in the future.

(E) Capital Risk Management

The capital of the Seres Trust is represented by the net assetls attributable to the holder of units. The amount of net
assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the Series Trust is subject to
daily subscriplions and repurchases at the discretion of the unithelder. The Series Trust's objective when managing
capital is to safequard the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide retumns for the
unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the
investment activities of the Seres Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Series Trust's policy is

to perform the following:

» Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liguid assefs and adjust the amount of
distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.

« Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constifutional documents of the Series Trust.
The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder of units.
5.2 Additional Series Trust's Risks

(&) Custody Risk 4 i
Meither the Trustee nor the Manager confrols the custodianship of the Series Trust's entire holding of listed and

unlisted private equity securiies. The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act as custodians may
become insalvent, causing the Seres Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.
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(B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respective agents,
principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Series Trust under
certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per unit.

(C) Settlement Risk

Setflement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United States,
the European Union and Japan. Fereign setfliement and clearance procedures and trade regulations also may inveolve
certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically asscciated with the settlement of
United States investments. At times, setlements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of
securities transactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Manager to carry out transactions for the account
of the Series Trust.

If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in seflling a purchase of securities, it may miss atiractive investment
opportunities and certain of the Series Trust's assets may be uninvested with no retum eamed thereon for some year.
If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a sale of securities, the Series Trust may lose money if the value
of the security then declines or, if it has confracted to sell the security to another party; the Series Trust could be
liable for any losses incurmed.

(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use derivative instruments to hedge the Series Trust's investments or to seek to enhance the
Series Trust's retums. Dervatives allow the risk exposure of the Series Trust to increase or decrease more quickly
and efficiently than other types of instruments, Derivatives are volatile and involve significant risks, including:

» Cradit Risk — the risk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction) on a dervative
{ransaction will be unable to honor its financial obligation to the Series Trust,

* Leverage Risk — the risk associated with certain types of investments or trading strategies that relatively small
market movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Certain investments or trading
strategies that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the amount originally invested.

= Liquidity Risk — the risk that cerlain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at the time that the seller would
like or at the price that the seller believes the security is curmently worth.

The Manager may use derivatives for hedging purposes for the Series Trust, including anticipatory hedges. Hedging
is a strategy in which the Manager uses a derivative to offset the risks associated with other Series Trust's holdings.

While hedging can reduce losses, it can also reduce or eliminate gains or cause losses if the market moves in a
manner different from that anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the derivative cutweighs the benefit of the
hedge. Hedging also involves the risk that changes in the value of the derivative will not match those of the holdings
being hedged as expected by the Manager, in which case any losses on the holdings being hedged may not be
reduced and may be increased. There can be no assuranca that the Series Trust's hedging strategy will reduce risk
or that hedging transactions will be either available or cost effective. The Manager is not required to use hedging for
the Series Trust and may choose not to do so. Because the Manager may use derivatives to seek to enhance the
Series Trust's returns, its investments will expese the Series Trust to the risks outined above to a greater extent than
if the Manager used derlvatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of derivatives fo seek to enhance returns is
considerad speculative.

As of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, there were no Series Trust derivative assets and liabllities subject to netfing
arrangements and similar agreements.

(E) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which
the Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties
and default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Serles Trust. Any such default could result in
material losses to the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Series Trust
to the counterparties in order to secure certain transactions. No collateral was pledged by the Manager during year
ended June 30, 2022,
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The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

(F) Early Termination of the Series Trust
The Final Repurchase Day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event ocour.

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS 13 Fair value measurement, and utilizes the last traded market price for its fair
valuation inputs for bolth financial assets and habilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongaing basis.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each period end date. Valuation techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as
options, currency swaps and other over-the-countar derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm's length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option
pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of
market inputs and relying as litle as possible on entity-specific inputs.

For instruments for which there i no active market, the Series Trust may use intemnally developed models, which are
usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of
the inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions. The
output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and
valuation techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Series Trust holds.
Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including moded risk, liquidity risk
and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measuremeants.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

« Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Lewvel 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are uncbservable inputs for the asset or [iability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety
is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. if a fair value
measurement uses ohservable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that
measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under
advisement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers observable data to be
that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and
provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.
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The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of June 30, 2022 in valuing the
Series Trust's financial azsets:

(Unadjusted)
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Significant Other Significant

Financial Assets at Fair Value Investments Observable Inputs Unobservable Fair Value at June 30,
Through Profit or Loss {Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3) 2022
Investment in listed and unksted
private equity securities ¥ 3478671885 ¥ - ¥ 415,588,700 ¥ 3,894.260,595
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss ¥ 34TBET1,895 ¥ - ¥ 415,588,700 ¥ 3,894,260,595

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of June 30, 2021 in valuing the
Series Trust's financial assets:

(Unadjusted)
Quioted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Significant Other Significant
Financial Assets at Fair Value Investments Observable Inputs Unobservable Fair Value at June 30,
Through Profit or Loss _[Lewal 1) {Lovel 2) Inputs (Level 3) 2021
Investment in ksted and unlisted
private equity securities ¥ 4. 730,977,085 ¥ - ¥ 253.020.000 ¥ 4,884 006,065
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss ¥ 4,730,977,065 ¥ - ¥ 253,020,000 ¥ 4,984,006,065

During the year ended June 30, 2022 and the period ended June 30, 2021 there were no transfers between Lavels 1,
2and 3.

Financial instruments that frade in markets that are not considered fo be aclive but are valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within
Level 2. These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt securities. As Level 2 investments include positions that
are not traded in active markets andfor are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

The following table shows a reconciliation from opening balances to closing balances for fair value measurements in
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Balance at June 30, 2021 ¥ 253,029,000
Total gains or losas recognized in profit or loss -
Change in unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) 53,858,700
Purchases 98,700,000
Sales -

Transfers into Level 3 -
Transfers out of Level 3 -
Balance at June 30, 2022 ¥ 415588700

25
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The table below sets out information about significant unobservable inputs used at June 30, 2022 in measuring
financial instruments categorized as Level 3 in the fair value hieranchy:

Sensitivity to
Significant Range (weighted- changes in
Fair value at Valuation unobservable average) for Significant
Description June 30, 2022 technigue inputs unohservable inputs  unobservable inputs
Rapyuta Robotics ¥ 316,888,700 Discounted Discount Rate 40% to BO%% The fair value
(2021: ¥ 253,025000) Cash Flow would increasa if
the Discount Rate
decreases.
EVIEBITDA 20142 The fair value
Multiple would increase if
tha EVIEBITDA
Multiple increases,
Discount for WA The fair value
Lack of would increase if
Marketability the Discount for
Lack of
Marketability
decreases.
Infeurion ¥ $8,700,000 Recent WA WA MIA

(2021: nil) Transaction

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

M AtJune 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and liabilities (including
prepaid fees, receivables for dividends, securities sold, inferest and other assets, bank overdraft and
payables for securties purchased, investment management fees, distribution fees, fee agent fees,
professional fees, custody fees, administrator fees, transfer agent fees and agent member company fees)
are deemed shori-ferm financial assets and liabilities whose camying amounts approximate fair value
bacause of their shortterm nature. Refer to Note 2 for a description of the valuation techniques.

(il Net assets atiributable to the holder of units. The Series Trust repurchases and issues the units at the
amount equal to the proportionate share of net assets of the Series Trust at the time of repurchase,
calculated on a basis consistent with that used in these financial statements. Accordingly, the carrying
amount of net assels attributable to the holder of units approximates their fair value.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward contracts

The Series Trust invests in forward contracts which are designed to hedge the Series Trust's exposure to fluctuations
in the cummency rate between Japanese Yen (in which the Series Trust and the units are denominated) and currencies
other than JPY. Forward contracts are entered by buying JPY forward contracts against other cumencies under
normal circumstances in an amount equal, fo the extent possible, to approximately 100% of the other currencies
exposure of the Net Asset Value (excluding unrealized currency gain or losses).

As of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, there were no open forward foreign cumency contracts invested in the Series
Trust.
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7. NET GAIN/ LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

For the period ended
June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021

MNet gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
throwgh profit and loss consist of the following:
Net realized (loss)fgain on investments in listed and
unlisted private equity securities ¥ (440,040,287) ¥ 378,066,707
Net realized gain on investments in forward contracts 84,459 217,901
Tetal net realized (lessygain on financial assets and Eabilities at

fair value through profit or loss ¥ (439,955 828) ¥ 379,284 608
Maovement in net unrealized (depreciation)/appreciation on
investments in listed and unlisted private equity securities ¥ (546,653 480) ¥ 599,202 172
Total net change in unrealized (depreciation)fappreciation on
financial assets and liabikties at fair value through profit or loss ¥ (545,653 480) ¥ 580202172

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
8.1 Fees and Expenses

(A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.06% on the first US$500 million of the net assets, 0.05% on the next
LIS$500 million of the net assets and 0.04% on the net assets over US$1 billion, subject to a monthly minimum fee of
%$3,750. The fees eamed by the Administrator during the year ended June 30, 2022 and the pericd ended June 30,
2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives asset based and transactional charges dependent on market demographics of the assets.
The fees eamed by the Custodian during the year ended June 30, 2022 and the peried ended June 30, 2021, and
outstanding fees payable to the Cusiodian as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(C) Distribution Fees

The Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.60% of the Net Asset Value attributable to the JPY Class Units payable
quarterly in arrears. The Distribution Fees are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the
assets of the Series Trust The fees eamed by the Distributor during the year ended June 30, 2022 and the period
ended June 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, have
been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(D) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Net Asset Value and a $10 fee per transaction out of the
assels of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Transfer Agent during the year ended June 30, 2022 and the
period ended June 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable fo the Transfer Agent as of June 30, 2022 and June 30,
2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,

(E) Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the year ended June 30, 2022 and the period
ended June 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

8.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercize significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager, Agent
Member Company, Investment Manager and Sub-lnvestment Manager are all related parties to the Series Trust.

There were no ather transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.
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(A) Trustee Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a fixed annual fee of $10,000 payable annually in
advance. The fees eamnad by the Trustee during the year ended June 30, 2022 and the period ended June 30, 2021,
and outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of fee agent
fees,

(E) Fee Agent Fees

The Fea Agent receives an annual fee of 0.20% of Net Assels Value (the "Operational Costs Fees"), accrued on and
calculated as at each valuation day. The Operational Costs Fees are pald by the Administrator, on behalf of the
Trustee out of the assels of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Fee Agent during the year ended June 30, 2022
and the period ended June 30, 2021, and cutstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as of June 30, 2022 and June
30, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,

respectivaly.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the Manager fees, the Trustee fees and costs and expenszes, which are, in
the reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as associated costs and expenses of the Manager fees and
Trustee fees (the "Ordinary Ciosts™).

(i) routine legal and auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and expenses;
(i} annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to govemment bodies and agencies;

(iii) communication costs related to investors services and unitholder's meetings, confirmations, financial reporting
and other reporting, proxies, costs relating to the preparation of the Offering Memerandum and the Appendix 24 and
other similar offering documents and the costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such
documents; and (iv) insurance costs (if any).

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the investment manager fees, audit
fees, formation expenses, distribution fees, administration fees, custody fees, PEP research and wvaluation fees,
agent member company fees, payment of broker fees relating to security transactions and any taxes relating to the
purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing costs and any other extraordinary costs
and expenses that would not usually occur,

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is liable for
any outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall ba retained by the
Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust,

The Operational Costs Fees are payable quarterly in arrears in the amount accrued, from and excluding, for the first
accrual period only, the initial clesing day, and for all other accrual periods, the last day of each calendar quarter,

(C) Manager Fees

The Manager is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of $5,000 per annum payable
monthly in arrears, The fees eamed by the Manager during the year ended June 30, 2022 and the period ended June
30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Manager as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, have been disclosed
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of fee
agent fees.

(D) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is entitied to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value payable
quarterly in arears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager out
of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Agent Member Company during the year ended June 30,
2022 and the period ended June 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Member Company as of June
30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of

Financial Position, respectively.
(E) Investment Management Fees ]
The Investment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.70% of the Net Asset Vialue payable quarterly in arrears,

The fees eamed by the Investment Manager during the year ended June 30, 2022 and the period ended June 30,
2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Investment Manager as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, have been
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disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Staterment of Financial Position, respectively. The
Investment Manager receives a research and valuation fee related to Private Equity Portion securities.

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Series Trust may bormow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows. During
the year ended June 30, 2022 and the pericd ended June 30, 2021, the Series Trust did not incur any barrowings.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through November 4, 2022, the date on which
these financial statements were available fo be issued. Effective July 1, 2022 through November 4, 2022, there were
redemptions of $103,260,630. There are no other subsequent events to report as relates to the Series Trust.
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2022 10

3,636,459

31,471

3,604,987

375,494

9,601
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10
15
21
50

33.2
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2022 10 735,000 10,897

10
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2022 10

1,636,209,789
9,902,052
13 76,184,591
68,189,555, 806
460,083,818
26 169,134,354,256

153/222



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 2020 12 31 2021
2021 12 31
22
38 59 131

23 103

2022 10 31
148.26
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2021 2020

UsD UsD
1,541 228 16,025 2,376
1,541 228 16,025 2,376
4 1,541 228 16,025 2,376
5 210,000 31,135 220,000 32,617

4 1
211,545 31,364 236,025 34,993
6 (111,758) (16,569) (111,476) (16,527)
99,787 14,794 124,549 18,466
99,787 14,794 124,549 18,466
7

99,787 14,794 124,549 18,466
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2021 12 31

2021 2020

usb usD
9 1,759,688 260,891 1,643,796 243,709
10 210,863 31,263 220,970 32,761
1,970,551 292,154 1,864,766 276,470
10 223,931 33,200 217,933 32,311
223,931 33,200 217,933 32,311
11 735,000 108,971 735,000 108,971
1,011,620 149,983 911,833 135,188
1,746,620 258,954 1,646,833 244,159

1,970,551 292,154 1,864,766 276,470
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2021 12 31
usD usb usD
2021
735,000 108,971 911,833 135,188 1,646,833 244,159
99,787 14,794 99,787 14,794
12 31 735,000 108,971 1,011,620 149,983 1,746,620 258,954
2020
735,000 108,971 787,284 116,723 1,522,284 225,694
124,549 18,466 124,549 18,466

12 31 735,000 108,971 911,833 135,188 1,646,833 244,159
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2021 12 31
2021 2020

UsD UsD
99,787 14,794 124,549 18,466
4 (1,541) (228) (16,025) (2,376)
98,246 14,566 108,524 16,090
10,107 1,498 (3,543) (525)
10,107 1,498 (3,543) (525)
5,998 889 86,604 12,840
5,998 889 86,604 12,840
4 1,541 228 16,025 2,376
115,892 17,182 207,610 30,780
115,892 17,182 207,610 30,780
1,643,796 243,709 1,436,186 212,929
1,759,688 260,891 1,643,796 243,709
9 1,759,688 260,891 1,643,796 243,709
1,759,688 260,891 1,643,796 243,709
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KY1l 1104

309 c/o Maples

Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands

IFRS
IFRS 1AS
1ASB

IFRS

usb
usD
uSsD

usD
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ECL

IFRS

ECL
ECL
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2021

IFRS 16 CoviID 19

IFRS IAS 39 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16
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2021 2020
1,541 16,025
1,541 16,025

2021 2020

210,000 220,000
210,000 220,000
2021 2020
1) (1,182)
(5.,272) (3,201)
(106, 485) (107,093)
(111,758) (111,476)

162/222



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2039 10 10
5,000 2020 5,000 2021 12 31
REITa
a
a
CS
usS
usS
NB  MYAM
UK
AMP
a
AMP REIT

J REIT
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CAT
HOLT
PIMCO
J REIT
AHL
SBI  PICTET
usS
17 20
2021

2021 2020

1,759,688 1,643,796
1,759,688 1,643,796
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2021 2020
210,863 220,970
210,863 220,970
2021 2020
223,931 217,933
223,931 217,933
2021 2020

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2021

HKD USD

2020 12 31
12

2020 12 31

HKD

usD

HKD
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

210,863 210,863 220,863 220,863

210,863 210,863 220,863 220,863

223,931 223,931 217,933 217,933
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
958,931 958,931 952,933 952,933

2021 2020
210,000 210,000 220,000 220,000
210,000 210,000 220,000 220,000
2021 2020
106,485 107,093
106,485 107,093

2021

12 31
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Finacis simiaments ko the pear ooded 511 Decorabor 2021

Statement of Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Rebwonce
UsD I Mode

2021

2020

T af whizh imterest incame from insiuments a!
amorlised cosl

a4

1,541

T8
16,025

Met interest income 4

1,541

16,025

“Cller revenies

Met revenueas

“General, acminsirative and olher operaling expenses 6

U TEE) T ATE)

Operating prafit before allowance and taxation

99,787

124,549

Profit before tax

94,787

124,549

Inwrru.t;.;c.é;;;a.;me

Prafit after tax

99,787

124,549

The azcompanying notes fomm an inlegral part of these financial Saternents,
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Croc't Sulppe Mpaspemen! {Cayrun) Lindsg

Francial slafoments fo Mo yoar onoed 31 Decomtes 2020

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021

UsD H:ﬂm& 2021 2020
O e et e s s
Lasharddue from sanes 9 1769648 1,643,706
e e oo el
Total assats 1,970,551 1,864,766
Ligbilities

OIS, o —== T ——
Total liabilities 223,931 217,933
Sharehalders' equity
b"har:-ca,t:dnl - 11 735,000 T35.000
Rolained GITIRGS R 0 B33
Total sharehaolders’ equity 1. 746,620 1.646,833
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,970,551 1,864, TEE

Apneoved and authorised for isoue by the soard of dreciors on

Director

e

Micolas Papavoine
Directar
Credit Suisse Monagement {Cayman) Limited

The accompanying nates form an infegral part of these firancial statemenis.
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ok Sisnga Mansgemand (Taymoit] Lt
Flrancha! stafemants for te pewr snded 3 Docembor 2007

uso

Share capital

Retairaed

earings

Total

i
_Balance ot 1 January
Prefit for the yaar

738000 .

911,833 1646833

5,787

99,787

Balance at 31 December

735,000 1,011,620

1,746,620

EM“ Emm s sm e A EEEE SRR R
_Balance at 1 lanuary
Prefit for the year

o ABE228E

104,549

Balance at 31 Decembear

735,000

911,833

1,646,833

The gecomparying notes fom an integral part of these financial stalements,
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Gl g ilaregenaont [Cinrran) Lisshod
Fimronl sialemaaly for i year ancad 31 Dacamber 2097

Staternent of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Rafas
usD '.:l:'?n'? 2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Proiit batora tax fior the period 93,787 124, 545
Adjustments to reconclle net profit to net cash

_generated from/(used in) operating activities

Mon-cash items included in net profit before tax
and other adjustrments:

_hwts_:rﬁtlnmrr!e -1 {1.541) _{16.025]_

Cash generated from operating activilies befors
changes In operating assets and liabilities 98,246 108,524

..............................................................................................................

Het decrease/(increase) in operating assets 10,107 {3,543}
Net increase in aperating liabilities:

(iher llanllites R
_Net increase in operating liabilities:

5888 6,604
5398 .. BE.E04

Imberast income received 4 1,541 16,026
Net cash generated from operating activity 115,892 207,610
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 115,892 207 810
Cach ard cash equivalants at the beginning of year 1,643,705 1,456,186
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,759,688 1,643,796
Cash and due from banks A 1,750,688 1,643,796
Cash and cash eguivalents al the end of year 1,759,688 1,643,796

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thess financial statemenis.
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Meotes to the financial statements

1. Principal activities

Credit Susse Management (Cayman) Limited (the *Company®) ks incorporated In tne Cayman Islands
with imited flabiity, The Compary’s principal activilies are the creation of trusts and the administralion
ard management of assets in trusts. The Company's registered cffice Is o/o Maples Corporate
Senices Limited, P.0. Box 308, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-17104, Cayman Isiands,

2. Significant Accounting Policies
{a)  Statement of campliance

These financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with all appleable Intemational
Firancial Reporting Standards (FRSs™), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Intematioral  Firancial Repording Standards, !nterrational Accounting Standards (MASs™) and
Inserpretations issued by Interrational Accounting Standards Board (TASEY. A summary of the
signilicant accounting policies adoated by the Company is sat out below,

(by  Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basie used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of fnansial sistemenis in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumplicns that affect the apolication of polcies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilifies, incame and experses, The estimates and associated assumplions are based on
higtorical expedence and varicus other faclors that are believed fo be reasonable under the
creumstances, the results of which fiorm the basls of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and llabities that are nel readly apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ fram
these estimates.

The estimates and undedying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions fo
accouniing estimates are recognised In the period In which the estimate is revised if the revisicn
affects only that period, or in the peried of the revision and future periods if the revision affects beth
currart and fulure perocs.

{c) Forelgn currency

The Company's functional and presentetion currency is Unted States Dollars (PUSEY). Fereign
currengy traneactions dusing the yesr are translated into USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaclion dales. Monetary assets and habilides denominated in foreign currencies are transiated
inta LISD at the fareign exchange rates ruing at the end of lhe repoding peried. Bxchange gains and
losses are recogrised in the profit or loss,

Mon-menetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of histerical cost in a faregn currency
are translated info USD using the foreign exchange rates nuling at the transaction dates. Mon-
monetary assats and liabiites derominated in foreign curences that are stated at fair valus are
translated usng the forelgn exchange rates nuling at the dates the Tair value was detesmired, Foreign
currency dfferences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss,
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{d)  Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and due from barks comprise cash at bark and o0 hand with banks, and shert-term, highly
liquid imvestments that ave readily corvestible into known ameunts of cash and which are subject to an
insignifcant risk of charges in value, having besn within thres months of maturity at acquisition,

() Other assets

Other assets are initially recognised at fair value and thererfier sfaled al amorlised cost less

Expected Credit Less "ECLY) (refer o Mote 2(gl), except where the receivables are inlerasi-Tiee

koans made fo ralated parties without any fieed repaymert terms or the effect of discounting weuld be

Ln;brrmeriai. In such cases, the receivablas are stated of cost less impalrment for bad and deubtfu!
ts.

i Provisions and contingent liabllities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amound when the Company has a legal
or conslructve abligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outfiow of ecoramic
baneflils will ba required to setile the obligation and a rellable estimate cash be made. Whers the time
va'ue of monay is materal, provisions are stated at the present value of the expendture expected to
settle the obligation.

Whars it is not prosable that an outflow of ecencmic benefils will be required, or the amount canncl
be estimated refably, the obligation is disclosad as a contingent Fabiliy, unless the probability of
outflow of econamiz bensfits s remete. Passible chligations, whose ssisience will only be confimed
by the cocurrence er nor-accumence of ane or more fulure events are also disdosed s conlingent
Ezbities unless the probability of outfiow of sconomic benefits 1s remate.

gy  Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting pedad to
determing whetter there is any objective evidence of impaimment. f any such chjeclive eviderce
aidsts, the assel's recovarable amount is estimated ai the end of each reporting peciod. An
impairment loss Is recognised whenever the carying amount of an assel exceeds s reooveralie
amount. Impalrment lesses are recognised in the profit or loss,

Under IFRS 9, the impairment requiraments apply primardy fo financial assets measured at amarlised
cost. The impaiment requirements are based oo a forward-locking expected credd lass madel by
incerporating ressonable and suppeortable forecasts of future economic conditions avaliable at 1he
repofting date, This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which & determined on a probabilify-weighled basis.

{h} Revenue recognition
Prordded that it is probable fhel the economic benefils will Fow fa the Company and he revenue and
casts, if applicable, can be measured refinbly, sendce fee income is recognised in profit or loss when
the imvestment management senice is provided,

i Expenses

Al esperses are recognised (n profit and loss on an acerual bass,
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related partias

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party 's considered ta be related %o the Company if:
{a] A person, or & clese member of that person’s famly, is related o the Cormpany if that person:
M  has controd o jeint contral over the Compary;
() has significant influance over the Company; or
(i} is a member of the key management persornel of the Compary or the Covpary's
parent.

(k) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following concitions applies:

{)  The entity and the Compary are membors of the same group {which mears that each
parent, subsiciary end felfow subsidiary is re‘ated to the others).

{i} Ore entily is an assoclate or joint venture of the other ently {or an associate or joint
verture of a member of a group of which the olher enfily iz a member).

{if} Both entites are joint venlures of the same third party.

{v  One enfity is a joint verhure of a lhird party and the cther entity 15 an assoclate of the
third party.

{9 The enlity i & past-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Camparny or an ertity related to the Company.

i) The entity is controfied or jointly controlled by a person ideniified in (a),

i) A person identified in (g}{)) hes sionificant Influsnce over the entity of is a member of the
key rmanagement personnel of ihe antity {or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are hese family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person In thelr dealings with the entity.

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current pariod

The Company has apeded the following amendments for the first time for their annual repering perod
commencing 1 January 2021;
» Covid=19 - Related Renl Corcessions - amendmeants 40 IFRS 16, and

= [nterest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 - amendments to IFRS 2, IAS 30, IFRS T, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16,

The amerdments lizted abeve did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior perieds
and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future perods,
Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASE has Esved a number of amendments to IFRSs that are frst effective for the curent
accounting period of the Company. Nene of fhese developments have had a material effect on how
the Company's results and financial position for the current or prios periods have been prepared or
presented in Mote 2(k).

The Company has nol applied any new standard or interpretation that is rot yet effective for the
eument accounting pericd (Mota 16).
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Craai Suisse MarageTan! (Dknan) Limided
ofas fo Financf shiloenaals e the yar ended 31 December 2021

4. Met interest Income

uso 2021 2020
Net interest income
Inferest income an cash and dua from banks 1,541 o 1ECIQE
Total interest income 1.541 16,025

Al the sbove imersst income en nsbruments are st ameorlised cost.

5  Service Fee Income

The pincipal actvities of the Company are the creation of frusts ard the adminsireion and
marggement of assels in trusts.

Revenus reprasents investment mansgement fee income eamed from fellow subsidiary as fellows:

UsD 2021 2020
Revenues

Senvice fee Income T Ri0,000 0 220,000
Total revenues 290,000 220,000

€. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

uso 2021 2020
_General administrative and other operating expenses
I EIBIRES. o e e s e e G ARIEE
Auditor rernuneration 15,272 (2,201
. i
Tolal general administrative and cther operating expansas {111,758} {111,47E)

Al of the above expandiures are payabls fo the Compamy's immediate holding company and the
immediale holding company setfles such expanditures on behall of the Company.

7. Taxation
There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman lslands and the Cosnpany has received an
undertaking from the Gowemer in Council of the Cayman Isiands exempting it from all local income,

profits and capital tases unt 10 October 2039, Accordingly, no provision for incorme Laxes is included
i thege financial slaterments,
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsored unconsaldated stuchied antities

Tre Compary considers idself the spensor of a structured entily when either its rame appears i the
name of the structured ertity or in products issued by it or there is a genaral expectation from the
markel that the Company is assocated with the stractured entity or the Company was involved in the
design ar set up of the siuciured antity and has a form of invavement with the structured antily.

The below unconsalidated slructured emtities are sponsored by the Comparty whare a fisd annusl
managemeni fee of USD B.000 (2020 USD 5,000) is received but ro intersst i held by the
Company as at 31 Decerber 2021;

Glnbal REI_T 'nm‘ne ;!Qha Flind {Fnr Qmﬁi ed Inst.tutl:mi Irwestars c'l:ltilj

“Australian High Dividend Eauity Twin Alpha Furd (For Oualifed Instiutioral investors Only)
ug EE‘iT F‘n:m um "Fund {’ar ‘Cuzlified |n5|:i"u1li'ma! In-.res‘tars ﬂ'lt,‘}
Eiahrra ‘Australian High Dvidend Eqully Ajgha Fund (For Gualified Instiutional Investors Only) ~

dncipal / €8 Canadian Equity Income Fund (For Quallfied instituional Investors Only)

s ST EPEEE |y )

G:Inbal REIT Trple Premium Fund AFor &.ﬂluf‘ed P'rs‘ltl.r'u::rm’ Irr.rGS‘ul‘s 'ijl'j

U High Biv Equity Fremium Fund {For ualfied Institutional Invesiors Oniy) ™~

U5 $mall Cap Equity Premium Fund {For Qualied instilutional investors Only)
“Bafvea Emerging Local Market Bond Fund (For Gualified institulional Invesices Only)
U3 Preferred REIT Income Furd (For Qualified sk fioral Investors Onby

“Japan Equily Frémium Fund (For Guaifisd instiutional invesiors Gny} ~ """
NB/MYAM us JEIT lnm Fund {For Gu-a&f ied Institutional Invesiors l:h-!:r]

“Tiaivea UK High Dividend Equity Fund (For Cualfied institutional imvesiors

.ﬁMP'ﬁm!m ia Incnma Bmd Fmd L‘Fur l:}ua.lfleﬁ !nsttutlu"lal Irr'.-astors Cln ¥

i e s R g A e 0 e i

B.ra;ai E.ql.l"‘l]r AJP"Ia Fund {Fcr&. alrﬁad Enstm,rliu"l-'a. Ime*s"ms 'Drli}r}

“Diaiva Braziian Real Bong Fung {For Qualfied Imrﬂtuw'm Investors qn:,,}

Nissay Japan Squily Active Fund (For Quaified instivtionalinvesiors Galy] 'IIZIZIZIZIIZ
AP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualfied Insttutional investors Ok}
‘:J“ﬁE'I:I' a.nd R‘aa] Estate Equity Fu Fmd :'Fnr Civalfied I rutional Investors C {Jn }

gidhaa.-&mmar Hagn Divideand Em.t‘i;.r Civaties Income Fund (Fer Oualified nstiutional investors

“Dawa American REIT Quattro Income Fund (For |
Shinsei Wmd u’i"r‘ai.': Eh!l}a 'I:lrpe L'Fur Cwalfied Ins

U REIT Tripe Engine Pils Fund (or Gualified insfitutional Investors Ony) """
_UE Muljl_c_lpnl Ennd Fund s
Tokio Mu:m CaT Bord Fur'u;l

“Globai High Dividend Equity Premum Fund (For Qualified Insiiti

:MEISIEI‘*'- Gn-lecb::m
HOLT Euro Ec!.:ltlr F’-'erﬁl .JI'I'I Eund I:Fnr Tiaified 1n3t|tu1|:='1a! Imsbcra Gn‘:.r_]

FNICD Shert Term Inm;:l:le Shatag;: Fund
"FHACE Snort Term Stategy
“Daiwa J-REIT Coverad Call Fund {Fnr mained Instl*ulnna.! In'-'esta-'s rh Ijr}

EEATamme sEsaas

“Feoregn Densmi ited Man AHL Smart Larerage Elmtagy

‘IT'J"BFTIJJ’E Fmd e i A
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8. Unconsclidated Structured Entities (continued)

[nsnéht Alpha.

i I:r!-n'nu: G-E.:{h !’un-j i ik G e S e SR A A R A S EE S
'E‘rql_'r_{u_m Carry Strategy F Fund

Japenese Government | Bnnd 1790 ‘l‘w Lﬂl:ider Fu*ld Ei’o{ Ch.lsllfad' ‘mhmt‘nnaj F':'.'eshnrs Grl'}}l

US Treasury 5-7 Year Ladder Fund {For Qualiied instiufional Investors Only)”

Jsi'raha, REIT Fie *

“Augtraila REIT Fonde T
Srinsel iord Wrap Growth Type W&ﬂ"'ﬂhsm'mlmw Onb T
* The funds ware terminated during 2021,

The Company has not provided financial or ather support to uncorsclidaled siruciured entities that it
wais not confraciually required ta provide.

The Compery does not curenlly have the interficn t5 provide financlal or other support o
uncarsclidated struciuned enlifoas that it = not contraciually required to provide.

9. Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

usp 2021 2020
Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks 1,750,688 1,643,795
Taotal cash and due from banks 1,759,688 1,643,786

10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

Usp 2021 2020

Qther assels =
Interest and faes receivable 210,863 SE0AT0
Tatal other assets 210,863 220,970
UsD 2021 2020

Other liabilities

Interest and fmes payabls 223,831 217,933
Total other Habililies 223,831 217,933

12
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11. Share Capital
(a)  Authorised and issued share capital

2021 2020

No. of | UsSD Ne. of UsD
shares shares
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid up:
Crdnary shares TEo,O00 705,000 795,000 Tan00

The halders of ordinary shares are entifled to receive dividends as declared from time to ime and are
entited to cne vole per share af general meetings of the Company. All crdinary shares rank squally
with regasd to the Company's residusl assets.

(b  Capital management

The Company's primary abjectives when managing capital are to sateguard the Company's ability io
confinue as a going concern so that it man conlinue to provide retums to sharehalders, by pricing
senvices commensuraiely wilh ive level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonaole
cost. As the Company Is parl of a larger group, the Company’s scurces of additional capital and
policies for dishibution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capilal managemaent
objectves. The Company defines “capial” as ncluding all companents of equity.

The Campany's capital structure i regularly reviewsd and managed with cue regard to the capital
management practices of the group to which the Company belkngs. Adfustrments are made 1o the
capital struchure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Compary or the greup, to
the extert that these do nol confict with The directors” fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Compary was net subjest to exdernaly imposed capital requirements in the cumant perod.
12,  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Expasure to credt, liquidtly, intersst rate and foreign cumrency risis arises in the normal caurse of the
Company's business. These risks are managed by the Company's financial management policies and
practices described below.

fa)  Credi nisk

The Company's credit risk Is primariy attributable to emounts due frem group companias and cash: at
bnk, Cradit sk is defined a5 risk that one parly to a fingncial instrument will cause a financial oss be
anoiber party by failing to discharge an obligation. Managemant regularly moritors its risk expasure to
ensure that its credit risk is kept tooa minimal level. The maximom exposure to credt sk is
represented by the camying amount of each financlal asset In the statement of financial position after
deducting any impaiment allowance.
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12. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
(B Liquiciity risk

The Company's policy is to reguiarly monitor fis liguidity requirements to satisfy ite contractuzl and
reasorably foresesable obligations as they fall due.

At 31 December 2021 and 2030, 8! of the Company's financial Fabiities, which incledes al credtors
and accruals, are on demand or undated and are expecied |o ba selild batwesn thres to twebe
maniths,

(c]  Interest rabe fek
The Compary is exposed to inlerest rate risk only to the sxient that it earns bank interest on cash
and deposits, Al 31 December 20271 and 2000, a change in interest rates would have no direct
material effect on the camying value of 1he recognised assels or fabilities of the Company,

(d  Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to forelgn cumency risk primarily through cerain transactions which give rise
fo payables that are denominated in Hong Kang dellars (*HKDS.

As the HKD iz pegged to the USE, the Company considers that the risk of movaments in exchangs
rafas betwean LSD and HKD ta be inssgnficant.

) Fair values

The carying amounts of the Company's financlal instrements camied at cost or amortised cost are
not materially cifferent from thair fair value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,

13,  Material Related Party Transactions

In addtion to the transactions and balances disciosed elsewhere in the financial siatements, ihe
Company entered Ints the follenving matera’ related pardy tranzactions.

(a) Related party balance sheet transactions

31 December 2021 31 December 20207
Parant Fallow Total Perant Fellow Total
Group Group
Usp Companies Companies
Azants
Other assats — 210,563 0863 — 00,863 260,863
Total assets - 210,863 210,863 - 220,863 220,863
Liabilities and
Exquily
Other lghilies .. 238881 T 2R NITENS L 2REE
Shere coptal 735,000 - TEE.000 736,000 —- 735,000
Total labilities and
sharehaoldars"
equity 958,931 — 858,931 452,933 - 552,833

il Sl e ibid fig orb Rien Bosks rbclaii® 8d 5 £onS0T W 1R SRR S PRt
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13. Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b}  Related party revenues and expenses

2021 = 2020
Parent Fallow Total Parent Fellow Total
Group Group
usD Companbes Companies
Revenues
Sevice feebicome - 210000 910000 .7 ZEGE00 20000
“Total revenues - 210000 210,000 - 220,000 220,000

{e) Remuneration of key management personnel

Remuneration of key management personnal (USD) 021 2020
Short-term emplopos benedits 106,485 107023
Taolal Remuneration of key management personnel 106,485 107,093

14. Parent and Uitimate Holding Company

At 31 Decamber 2021, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which is incorporated in Heng HMeng and the ultmate controliing parly of Ihe Company is Cradi
Suisse Group AS, which is incorporated in Switzerland. Credt Suisse Group AG produces firarcal
slatements avallable for public use.

15, Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and [nterpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2021

Certalr new accounting standards, amendments to actourting standards and interpretations have
been pubiished that are not mandatary for 31 December 2021 reporting pericds and have not been
eay adooted by the Compary, These standards, amendments or interpeatations are not expecied te
have 2 meteral impect on the enfity in the current or future reporting pesiods and on foresesshble
future fransactons.

16. Subsequent Events
There have been no matters o croumstances fhat have afsen since the end of the finencial perod,
which sigrificanly affected, or may significantly atfect, the operations of the Compary, the resulls of
thase ooerations, or the state of aifairs of the Company in futume financial vears.

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements ware approved for issue by the beard of directors of the Company on 10
Juns 3022,

15
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2022 10 100 14,826
2020
Intertrust
N.V.
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2022 10 8,500
1,460 3,610
1940 206
2022 10 781
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SBI
2022 10 483 2,313
SBI SBI SBI
10
2015 2019
Credit Suisse International
2022 10 113 6,600 6,851 2,316
1990 1985
2500199 1990
2000
2006 16
Credit Suisse Group AG
E14 4QJ 44
8888 LEI E58DKGMJYYYJLNBC3868
1990 16

Credit Suisse AG
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148.72
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21,000,000
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1986 29
1987 20
2001
2002 SBI
2022
31 2,312
1805

Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
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1.1 1993
1.2
1960
1.3
1993
2020
2020
1.4
1.5 2021 12
12,451 3,145
2020
2020

1.6

2.1

2.2
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3.4
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4.1
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190/222



4.2
4.3
21
4.4 2006 12 27 2006
5.1
5.2

48

191/222

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



5.3

5.4
10

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8
24,390 30,488

36,585 42,682

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

3.2

XVITA
12

8,536

8,536

192/222



6.1

30

193/222

20

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



6.2

6.3

1925

150

1907

194/222

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50



6.4

2016

50

195/222

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5 7.3

7.6

7.7

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50

7.1

500

7.3 10

10

7.9

196/222



7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14
7.15

7.16

7.7

7.7

7.9

7.9

7.13
7.9

7.15

7.9

7.9

7.9

7.9

7.9

197/222

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7.15



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7.17 7.15

94

7.9 7.9

7.18 7.17
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Grand Cayman KY 1-1 106

Cayman Idands

Telephone +1 345 949 4800 Fax +1 345 949 7164

Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund (the "Series Trust"), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2022, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Series Trust as at June 30, 2022, and its financia performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the "Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section
of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International | ndependence Standards)
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Cayman Idlands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with (FRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud oc error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a materia
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

November 4, 2022
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Independent auditor's report
To the board of directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company™), which are set out on pages 3
to 15, comprise;

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS’).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(“IESBA Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsihilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent auditor's report (continued)
To the board of directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance isahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materid if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company'sinternal control.
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Independent auditor's report (continued)
To the board of directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2022
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